
Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

5:00 P.M.  PRESS CONFERENCE – UNVEILING OF AUBURN’S SESQUICENTENNIAL LOGO 

 
City Council Workshop & Meeting   

July 2, 2018 
Agenda 

 
                                                                                                                
5:30 P.M.  Workshop  

A. Executive Session – to consult with legal counsel regarding the marijuana moratorium, 

pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E) 

B. Executive Session – to consult with legal counsel regarding city owned and tax acquired 

property, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E) 

C. Renaming of Little Androscoggin Park – Mayor Levesque (20 minutes) 
D. Proposed Ordinance Amendment (Parks and Recreation Advisory Board) – Sabrina Best (10 

minutes). 
 
7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting  
 
I. Consent Items – None 

 

II.          Minutes – June 18, 2018 Regular Council Meeting 
  

III. Communications, Presentations and Recognitions 

Communication – Marijuana Moratorium Update (Phil Crowell)   

Proclamation - Summer Learning Day Proclamation 

IV. Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly 
related to City business which is not on this agenda.   

 
V.          Unfinished Business - None 
 
1. Ordinance 04-06182018  

Adopting the zone change for Niskayuna Street – second reading. 
 

VI.      New Business  
 

 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

1. Order 55-07022018  

Appointing Brian Carrier to the Planning Board as an Associate member with a term expiration 
of 01/01/2020. 
 

2. Order 56-07022018  

Appointing Dana Staples as full member of the Zoning Board of Appeals with a term expiration 
of 10/01/2019. 
 

3. Order 57-07022018  

Renaming Little Androscoggin Park to Anniversary Park to commemorate the Sesquicentennial 
Anniversary of the City of Auburn. 

 

VII. Reports 
  

A. Mayor’s Report  

B. City Councilors’ Reports   

C. City Manager Report  

VIII.      Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly 
related to City business which is not on this agenda. 

 

IX. Executive Session  
 

• Discussion on a poverty abatement case # 2018-002 pursuant to 36 M.R.S.A § 841 with possible action to 
follow.  

 

X. Adjournment 
 
 
 



 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   July 2, 2018 
 
 

Subject:  Executive Session 
 

Information: Legal consultation, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6) (E). 
 

Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive session.  Executive 
sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of public 
discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council 
must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time 
that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the 
categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 
 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, disciplining, 
resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation or hearing of charges or 
complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 
individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be conducted 

in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 
This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  
 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of whose 

education is paid from public funds, as long as:  
(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive session 

if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  
 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or interests 

therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or 
bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 
D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the body or 

agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open to the public if both 
parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 
E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated litigation, 

settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of professional responsibility 
clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, municipality or other public agency or person at 
a substantial disadvantage;  

 
F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those records 

is prohibited by statute; 
 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; consultation 

between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and review of 
examinations with the person examined; and  

 
H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, subsection 

1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending enforcement matter.  
 



 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   July 2, 2018 
 
 

Subject:  Executive Session 
 

Information: Legal consultation, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6) (E). 
 

Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive session.  Executive 
sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of public 
discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council 
must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time 
that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the 
categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 
 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, disciplining, 
resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation or hearing of charges or 
complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 
individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be conducted 

in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 
This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  
 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of whose 

education is paid from public funds, as long as:  
(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive session 

if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  
 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or interests 

therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or 
bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 
D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the body or 

agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open to the public if both 
parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 
E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated litigation, 

settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of professional responsibility 
clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, municipality or other public agency or person at 
a substantial disadvantage;  

 
F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those records 

is prohibited by statute; 
 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; consultation 

between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and review of 
examinations with the person examined; and  

 
H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, subsection 

1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending enforcement matter.  
 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   July 2, 2018  
 
Author:  Jody Durisko, Executive Assistant 
 

Subject:  Renaming of Little Androscoggin Park 
 
Information: Mayor Levesque is asking Council that consider renaming the Little Androscoggin Park to Anniversary Park 
to commemorate the Sesquicentennial Anniversary of the City of Auburn. 
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: None   
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: To rename Little Androscoggin Park Anniversary Park. 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: Not Applicable 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
I concur with the recommendation. Signature: _______________________________________ 

 
Attachments:  
Policy For Naming of Facilities and Infrastructure 
City of Auburn Nomination For Proposed Name  
Little Andy Information Sheet 
Riverway Concepts 
Preliminary Plan New Auburn Existing 
Preliminary Plan New Auburn Construction Activity 2018 
Preliminary Plan New Auburn Construction Activity 2019 
 
 
 



 

 

 

City of Auburn Nomination for Proposed Name 
(for public facility, building, infrastructure, park or plot of land) 

 

 

Name of Person/Group/Committee submitting name: ____________________________________________ 
 

Address: ___________________________________     Phone No.  _______________________________  

 

Proposed Name: ________________________ Old Name (if any): _______________________________  

 

Street Location: _________________________ Building/Property: ______________  City ID: __________ 
                                   (Tax ID, if any) 

 

The criteria for naming a city facility or infrastructure should reflect one or more of the following. Check all 

that may apply. 
 

1. Reflect City services provided in/at location _____  

2. Reflect geographical location   _____ 

3. Reflect significant natural features  _____  

4. Honor a significant individual (see below)  _____  (Full name of individual: _____________________) 
 

Criteria for naming a facility after an individual (person proposed is living __ deceased __): 

a. made a unique contribution to the area being named;    _____   

b. substantially improved or contributed to the quality of life in Auburn _____  

c. gave significant civic contribution(s) to Auburn or the region  _____  

d. brought recognition to Auburn for their achievements   _____  

e. donated land or significant resources to the facility   _____  

 

Reason for Nomination: 

_______________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________     

(use back or additional sheets if necessary) 

Office Use Only 
 

Date Submitted:  ____________ 
 

Nomination Period Starts:  ____________ 
 

Nomination Period Closes: ____________ 

 

















 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: July 2, 2018      
 
Author: Sabrina Best, Recreation Director   
 

Subject:  Ordinance Amendment for the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board  
 
Information:  There is a request to amend the ordinance language in Section 2-454 Established; membership section b 
for the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board. Current Language reads: “Of the seven appointed members, there shall be 
no more than two members from the same ward. A member shall forfeit his membership if he becomes a resident of a 
ward in which two members of the board already reside.” The request is to eliminate all of section b. This request is a 
result from not being able to fill vacant position with eager volunteers from the community due to the ward restrictions. 
Vacant position(s) have not been filled several times in the last two years due to this restriction.       
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: None   
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Approval of the request to eliminate the language as recommended.  The Parks and 
Recreation Advisory Board is in support.  
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: None  
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:       
 

Attachments:  
 



Sec. 2-454. Established; membership. 

(a) There shall be a parks and recreation advisory board, which shall be composed of eight members. All 
except the ex officio member of the board shall be appointed by the city council.  

(b) Of the seven appointed members, there shall be no more than two members from the same ward. A 
member shall forfeit his membership if he becomes a resident of a ward in which two members of the 
board already reside.  

(c) Serving as the ex officio member shall be the director of parks and recreation, who shall also serve as 
secretary to the board.  

(d) Nothing in this article shall preclude the creation of standing subcommittees. 

(Code 1967, § 18-3.1)  

 













City of Auburn, Maine 

Office of Economic & Community Development 
 www.auburnmaine.gov  |  60 Court Street  
 Auburn, Maine 04210  
 207.333.6601 

 

  
 
 

Page 1 of 2 

 

To:  Honorable Mayor and Auburn City Council 

From: Eric J. Cousens, Deputy Director of Economic and Community Development, 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., Chief of Police and Kelsey Earle, License Specialist. 

Re: Moratorium Follow-up: Medical Marijuana Storefront Permit Review 

Date: June 27, 2018 

 
The City Council voted to approve a moratorium for Medical Marijuana Social Clubs and Retail 
Medical Marijuana Storefronts effective May 31, 2018.  As a follow-up to the Council’s action 
staff has reviewed the permitting status of known or suspected businesses engaged in business 
activity that might be affected by the moratorium.  The businesses reviewed are limited to those 
that the City currently believes may be operating as Retail Medical Marijuana Storefronts as 
defined in the moratorium ordinance.  The facilities are as follows in numerical order by street 
number: 
 

1. Business Name: Crystal Springs Healing Alternatives.  
Address: 24 Brickyard Circle 
Licenses Held: No licenses for any foods or items intended for human 
consumption. 
Permitted Use: Approved for cultivation of medical marijuana and an office to 
meet patients, no retail displays/storefront. 
Website: https://www.facebook.com/crystalspringhealing/ 
   
 

2. Business Name: Port City Relief 
Address: 32 Riverside Drive   
Licenses Held: No licenses for any foods or items intended for human 
consumption. 
Permitted Use: Approved for cultivation, retail display and sales, including legal 
medical marijuana sales to registered patients. 
Website: https://www.facebook.com/portcityreliefauburn/ 
 

3. Business Name: Moonstone Pottery 
Address: 186 Turner Street 
Licenses Held: No licenses for any foods or items intended for human 
consumption. 
Permitted Use: Mercantile space for pottery, no marijuana specific approvals.   
Website: https://www.facebook.com/moonstonepotteryme/ 
 

https://www.facebook.com/crystalspringhealing/
https://www.facebook.com/portcityreliefauburn/
https://www.facebook.com/moonstonepotteryme/


City of Auburn, Maine 

Office of Economic & Community Development 
 www.auburnmaine.gov  |  60 Court Street  
 Auburn, Maine 04210  
 207.333.6601 

 

  
 
 

Page 2 of 2 

 

4. Business Name:  Legal Peaces 
Address: 197 Turner Street 
Licenses Held: No licenses for any foods or items intended for human 
consumption. 
Permitted Use: Retail sales of tobacco and other related products.  No marijuana 
specific approvals.   
Website:  https://www.facebook.com/pages/Legal-Peaces/237037290088574 
 

5. Business Name: Fire Pharms 
Address: 375 Center Street 
Licenses Held: Prepackaged food items for human consumption. 
Permitted Use: Approved for retail display and sales, including legal medical 
marijuana sales to registered patients, and prepackaged foods. 
Website: https://www.facebook.com/FirePharms-Auburn-Maine-
2018274538393211/ 
 

6. Business Name:  Canna Source 
Address: 747 Minot Avenue 
Licenses Held: No licenses for any foods or items intended for human 
consumption. 
Permitted Use: Retail, garden supply, clothing and pipes.  No marijuana specific 
approvals.   
Website: None known.   

 

Staff has provided this review for the consideration of the Council.  To date, staff has not taken 

enforcement action on activities uncovered during the review that appear to exceed the 

allowances under existing permits and/or licenses.  Further review will be needed to confirm if 

facilities suspected of operating as Retail Medical Marijuana Storefronts as defined in the 

ordinance are conducting business in violation of existing permits and licenses.   Staff intends to 

follow the updates to marijuana related legislation, work with the committee to draft 

recommended ordinances and take further direction from the Council as it becomes available.  

https://www.facebook.com/pages/Legal-Peaces/237037290088574
https://www.facebook.com/FirePharms-Auburn-Maine-2018274538393211/
https://www.facebook.com/FirePharms-Auburn-Maine-2018274538393211/


A PROCLAMATION CELEBRATING SUMMER LEARNING DAY 2018 
 

 

WHEREAS, Summer Learning Day is a day to reflect on the importance of keeping youth learning, safe, and 

healthy every summer, ensuring they return to school in the fall ready to succeed in the year ahead; and  
 

WHEREAS, Summer learning loss is a significant contributor to the achievement gap - a gap that remains 

constant during the nine months of the school year but widens during the summer months; and  
 

WHEREAS, Summer learning programs are proven to maintain and advance students’ academic and social 

growth, keep children safe and healthy during the summer, and send young people back to school ready to 

learn. Additionally, summer youth employment programs engage older youth in meaningful activities that 

allow them to explore careers of interest, take on new responsibilities, contribute to their community, and earn 

money for the future; and  
 

WHEREAS, A wide array of public agencies, community-based organizations, schools, libraries, museums, 

recreation centers, camps, and businesses in our community contribute to the well-being of youth through 

summer programming; and  
 

WHEREAS, Summer learning is a critical component of our collective effort to ensure all students graduate 

from high school prepared for college, careers, and life; 
 

NOW THEREFORE I, Jason Levesque, Mayor of the City of Auburn, do hereby proclaim July 12, 2018, as 

SUMMER LEARNING DAY in Auburn, Maine, and do commend this observance to all of our citizens.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand 

and caused the Great Seal of the City of Auburn, 

Maine to be fixed this ___
th
 day of ________, 2018. 

 

 

 

Mayor Jason Levesque 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 

City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  7-2-2018  Ordinance: 04-06182018 
 
Author:  Eric J. Cousens, Deputy Director of Economic and Community Development  
 
Subject:  Zone Change Request for Evergreen Subaru for properties located at 20 Niskayuna St (PID: 300-014) and 1079 
Turner St (PID: 300-013) from Suburban Residential to General Business. 
 
Information:  Evergreen Subaru, currently located on Center Street, has been a successful auto dealership and has 
acquired 2 properties (listed above) that are adjacent and located on Turner St and Niskayuna St.  These 2 properties are 
currently zoned Suburban Residential and are being petitioned to have that zoning changed to General Business.  The 
2010 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map recommends the area requested for rezoning for Business Expansion 
Transition (BXT).  The BXT land use designation is compatible with the General Business District and complies with the 
2010 Comprehensive Plan.  Approving the zone change will allow Evergreen Subaru to expand its business operation.  
Approving the zone change will allow Evergreen Subaru to expand its business operation.   
 
The Planning Board voted unanimously (5-0) to forward a recommendation of APPROVAL on to the City Council at their 
May 8, 2018 meeting.  The required Planning Board report is attached with this information sheet.    

 
City Budgetary Impacts: The zone change itself will not have a city budgetary impact.  The potential future development 
will create a higher taxable value to the affected land and improvements.  The potential closure of Niskayuna St as part 
of the business expansion may reduce city cost of service for maintaining a public road. 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: The Staff and the Auburn Planning Board recommend the City Council make a motion to 
APPROVE the zoning map amendment,  Ordinance 04-06182018, Adopting the zone change for Niskayuna Street – 
second reading. 
 
Previous Meetings and History: May 8th, 2018 Planning Board meeting - a public hearing was held (no public response) 
and the Planning Board voted 5-0 to forward a positive recommendation to the City Council. All Planning Board 
materials and maps are attached. June 18, 2018 Council public Hearing and passage of first reading and previous 
workshop. 
 
City Manager Comments:  

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:     
 

Attachments:  
1. Planning Board Report to the City Council.  
2. Staff Report for the Planning Board’s May 8, 2018 meeting with map and attachments. 

 



City of Auburn, Maine 

Office of Economic & Community Development 

 www.auburnmaine.gov  |  60 Court Street  

 Auburn, Maine 04210  

 207.333.6601 

 

Page 1 of 4 

 

 

PLANNING BOARD CITY COUNCIL REPORT 

 

To: Mayor Levesque and Honorable Members of City Council   

 

From: Zach Mosher, City Planner 

 

Re: Evergreen Subaru - Rezoning Petition for Properties Located at Niskayuna and 

Turner St 

 

Date: May 21, 2018    

 

I. PROPOSAL- Evergreen Subaru submitted a petition to rezone 2 properties located at 20 

Niskayuna St (PID: 300-014) and 1079 Turner St (PID: 300-013).  These properties are currently 

zoned Suburban Residential (SR) and applicant is requesting the zoning be changed to 

General Business (GB).  The applicant is the owner of the properties that are being 

requested for rezoning and wants to expand Evergreen Subaru’s auto sales into that area.  

The total net acreage of the 2 properties is 1.22 acres and the gross acreage (include street 

right of way) is 1.6 acres. The applicant is also requesting the discontinuance of Niskayuna 

St.  

 

II. DEPARTMENT REVIEW- The Plan Review Committee met on April 18th and the Police 

Department was curious to know if the taxable value of the lots would increase because of the 

zone change and the Assessing Department replied that the conversion from residential to 

commercial is likely to increase the taxable value of each lot, even before a structure were to be 

put on any of the lots. The Planning Department wanted to make sure the zone change was 

supported by the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map and it is. 

 

III. PLANNING BOARD ACTION- The Planning Board reviewed whether the proposed zone 

change complies with the 2010 Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map.   

 

Current Zoning- The properties located at 20 Niskayuna St (PID: 300-014) and 1079 Turner 

St (PID: 300-013) are currently zoned Suburban Residential.  The properties to the north are 

zoned Suburban Residential and General Business, to the east is zoned General Business, to 

the south is General Business and to the west is Suburban Residential.  The dealership has 

secured the option rights to purchase 1079 Turner St and owns the property at 20 

Niskayuna St.   

 



Future Land Use Plan- The area proposed for the rezoning is recommended for Business 

Expansion Transition District (BXT) in the 2010 Comprehensive Plan.  Business Expansion 

Transition District (BXT) is describes in the 2010 Comprehensive Plan as follows:  

 

“Business Expansion Transition District (BXT) 

Objective – Allow for the orderly conversion of “pocket” or “island” residential 

neighborhoods that are adjacent to commercial zones to nonresidential use over time.  The 

intention of this designation is that these areas remain zoned as they currently are and the 

residential uses be allowed to continue, but to provide for these areas to rezoned to 

commercial/business use when there is an appropriate development proposal.  In 

rezoning these areas, the rezoning process should occur in way that expands the 

adjacent nonresidential zone in an orderly manner, while maintaining the livability of 

the remaining residential properties. 

 

Allowed Uses – The current allowed uses should remain in force until these areas are 

rezoned. 

 

Development Standards – The current development standards should remain in force until 

these areas are rezoned.” (2010 Comprehensive Plan page 101) 

 

Current Zoning 



City of Auburn, Maine 

Office of Economic & Community Development 

 www.auburnmaine.gov  |  60 Court Street  

 Auburn, Maine 04210  

 207.333.6601 

 

Page 3 of 4 

 

 

 

Future Land Use Plan (2010 Comprehensive Plan) 

 

 

IV.PLANNING BOARD PUBLIC HEARING, DELIBERATION AND RECOMMENDATION-  

 The Planning Board opened the public hearing portion of agenda item at the May 8, 

2018 meeting and no one from the public spoke or gave comments.  The Planning 

Board then discussed: 

• The status of the surrounding properties understanding that, if approved, the 7-

lot property block between Turner St, Malibu Dr, Center St, and Niskayuna would 

be zoned completely General Business.  

• The Board also considered photos of the existing screening that had been grown 

over time and wanted to make sure steps were taken to protect the remaining 

residential properties from the commercial property.    

Business Expansion 

Transition District 2 Lots proposed for 

rezoning from SR to GB



• The Board discussed the timing of any future development and how potential 

impacts on the remaining residential properties would be handled.  The applicant 

would have to apply for a Special Exception and Site Plan Review to the Planning 

Board where impacts on surrounding properties would be addressed prior to any 

approval and construction.   

• A question was raised as to whether a portion of Niskayuna would remain open 

as a possible entrance to the dealership, but the applicant indicated that was not 

likely and that the entrances to the dealership would be only off of Joline Dr. and 

Malibu Dr.  

 

 The Planning Board considered the applicant’s testimony and the Staff recommendation 

of Approval and voted with a favorable and unanimous vote of 5-0 (motion by Bowyer, 

seconded by Hamlyn) to forward a recommendation of APPROVAL to the City Council 

of the proposed zone change from Suburban Residential to General Business for the 

properties located at 20 Niskayuna St (PID: 300-014) and 1079 Turner St (PID: 300-013)  

with the following findings: 

1. The properties proposed for rezoning meet the definition of Business Expansion 

Transition District. 

2. The properties proposed for rezoning are in agreement with the 2010 

Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map.   

 
 
 
 

 
_____________________________ 
Zach Mosher  
City Planner 
 
 
 
 



City of Auburn, Maine 

Office Economic and Community Development 

 www.auburnmaine.gov  |  60 Court Street  

 Auburn, Maine 04210  

 207.333.6601 

 

Page 1 of 4 

 

 

PLANNING BOARD STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Auburn Planning Board 

 

From: Zach Mosher, City Planner 

 

Re: Evergreen Subaru-Rezoning Petition for Properties Located at Niskayuna St & Turner St 

 

Date: May 8, 2018 

 

 

I. PROPOSAL – Mike Gotto, of Stoneybrook Consultants, Inc., an agent for Evergreen Subaru has 

submitted a rezoning petition for properties located at 20 Niskayuna St (PID: 300-014) and 1079 Turner 

St (PID: 300-013).  These properties are currently zoned Suburban Residential (SR) and the applicant is 

requesting the zoning be changed to General Business (GB).  The applicant is the owner of the 

properties that are being requested for rezoning and wants to expand their facilities into that area.  The 

total net acreage of the 2 properties is 1.22 acres and the gross acreage (include street right of way) is 

1.6 acres. 

 

In July 2016 Evergreen Subaru submitted a rezoning petition to the Planning Board for properties 

located at 16 Malibu Drive (PID # 301-006), 32 Malibu Drive (PID # 301-007), 40 Malibu Drive (PID # 

301-012), and 40 Niskayuna Street (PID # 301-004).  At the time, the Planning Board voted with a 

favorable, unanimous vote of 7-0 to forward a recommendation of approval to the City Council of the 

proposed zone change from Suburban Residential to General Business for the 4 properties referenced 

above. The zone change for those 4 properties were approved at the September 12, 2016 City Council 

meeting. The September 2016 zone change approval of these properties means that only two parcels 

left - 1079 Turner Street and 20 Niskayuna Street – are in the SR zoning district in the 7-property block 

between Niskayuna St, Turner St, Center St and Malibu Drive.   

 

The applicant is now requesting that the two remaining parcels – 20 Niskayuna St and 1079 Turner St – 

be included in the GB zoning district to make the entire block one zoning district, GB. The applicant will 

also be asking the City Council to discontinue Niskayuna St for the purposes of the expansion.  

   

II. DEPARTMENT REVIEW 

 

Police Department: The Police Department was curious to know if the taxable value of the lots would 

increase because of the zone change and the Assessing Department replied that the conversion from 

residential to commercial is likely to increase the taxable value of each lot, even before a structure were 

to be put on any of the lots.  



Fire Department: No comment.  

 

Water and Sewer District: No comment.  

 

Engineering Department: No comment.  

 

Planning Department: The Planning Department wanted to make sure the zone change was supported 

by the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map and it is. 

 

III. PLANNING BOARD ACTION- The Planning Board shall consider whether the proposed zone change 

complies with the 2010 Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Plan and Map.  The Board is being asked 

to forward a recommendation of approval to the City Council for final action. 

 

 Current Zoning- The properties located at 20 Niskayuna St (PID: 300-014) and 1079 Turner St (PID # 

300-0013) are currently zoned Suburban Residential.  The properties to the north are zoned Suburban 

Residential and General Business, to the east is zoned General Business, to the south is General Business 

and to the west is Suburban Residential.  

 

Suburban Residential 

General Business 

2 Lots proposed for 

rezoning from SR to GB



City of Auburn, Maine 

Office Economic and Community Development 

 www.auburnmaine.gov  |  60 Court Street  

 Auburn, Maine 04210  

 207.333.6601 

 

Page 3 of 4 

 

 

 

Future Land Use Plan- The area proposed for the rezoning is recommended as Business Expansion 

Transition District (BXT) in the 2010 Comprehensive Plan.  Business Expansion Transition District (BXT) is 

describes in the 2010 Comprehensive Plan as follows:  

 

“Business Expansion Transition District (BXT) 

Objective – Allow for the orderly conversion of “pocket” or “island” residential neighborhoods that are 

adjacent to commercial zones to nonresidential use over time.  The intention of this designation is that 

these areas remain zoned as they currently are and the residential uses be allowed to continue, but to 

provide for these areas to rezoned to commercial/business use when there is an appropriate 

development proposal.  In rezoning these areas, the rezoning process should occur in way that 

expands the adjacent nonresidential zone in an orderly manner, while maintaining the livability 

of the remaining residential properties. 

 

Allowed Uses – The current allowed uses should remain in force until these areas are rezoned.  

 

Development Standards – The current development standards should remain in force until these areas 

are rezoned.” (2010 Comprehensive Plan page 101)  

 

Future Land Use Map- The 2010 Comprehensive Plan shows the properties proposed for rezoning to 

be in the Business Expansion Transition District (BXT).  

 



 

IV. STAFF RECOMMENDATION – The Staff recommends the Planning Board forward a recommendation 

of APPROVAL to the City Council of the proposed zone change from Suburban Residential to General 

Business for the properties at 20 Niskayuna St (PID: 300-014) and 1079 Turner St (PID: 300-013) with the 

following findings: 

 

1) The properties proposed for rezoning meet the definition of Business Expansion Transition 

District. 

2) The properties proposed for rezoning are in agreement with the 2010 Comprehensive Plan’s 

Future Land Use Plan.   

  

 

 
__________________________ 

Zach Mosher 

City Planner 

Business Expansion 

Transition District 
2 Lots proposed for 

rezoning from SR to GB



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDINANCE 04-06182018 
 

BE IT ORDAINED, that the City Council hereby amends the Auburn Zoning Map from Suburban 
Residential District to General Business District for the following properties; 20 Niskayuna 
Street (PID # 301-004) and 1079 Turner St  as shown on the attached map, pursuant to Chapter 
60, Article XVII, Division 2 of the Ordinances of the City of Auburn. 
 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  July 2, 2018   
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 
Subject:  Board and Committee Appointments 
 
The Appointment Committee met on June 20, 2018 to review applications and make their nominations for boards and 
committees of the City as follows: 
 
Brian Carrier – Planning Board (associate member, new appointment) with a term expiration of 1/1/2020.   
 
Dana Staples – Zoning Board of Appeals (from associate member to full member) with a term expiration of 10/01/2019. 
 
Council may enter into executive session pursuant to 1 MRSA Sec. 406(6)(A) to review applications or for further 
discussion before making appointments. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: None 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Consider appointing members as recommended by the Appointment Committee. 
 
Motion to appoint Brian Carrier to the Planning Board as an Associate member with a term expiration of 01/01/2020. 
This is a new appointment. This is Order # 55-07022018. 
 
Motion to appoint Dana Staples as a full member of the Zoning Board of Appeals with a term expiration of 10/01/2019. 
This is Order # 56-07022018. 

 
Previous Meetings and History: The Appointment Committee met on June 20, 2018 to make their nominations. 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.    Signature:          
 

 
Attachments:  
List of applicants 
List of vacancies 
Applications 
Orders 
 



 

VACANCIES 

 

Audit Committee - 1 vacancy with a term expiration of 12/1/2019 

Board of Assessment Review - 3 vacancies – alternate positions. One with a term expiration 

of 10/1/2020, and two with term expirations of 10/1/2022 

Cable TV Advisory Committee – 2 vacancies - one with a term expiration of 6/1/2019, one 

with a term expiration of 6/1/2020  

Citizens Advisory Committee - 1-4 vacancies, all with 6/30/2019 term expirations 

Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - 2 vacancies from either WARDS 2, 3, 4, or 5 - both 

with term expirations of 10/01/2019 

Planning Board - 1 vacancy, associate position with term expiration of 1/1/2020 

Zoning Board of Appeals - 3 vacancies - 1 associate member position with a 10/01/2020 term 

expiration and two full member positions with term expirations of 10/01/2018 and 10/01/2019) 

 























Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 55-07022018 
  
 
 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints the following board and committee member 
as nominated by the Appointment Committee on 06/20/2018; 

 

Board or Committee Term Exp. Date Name  

Planning Board – Associate 
Member 

01/01/2020 
 

Brian Carrier  (new appointment) 

 
 

 

  



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 56-07022018 
  
 
 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints the following board and committee member 
as nominated by the Appointment Committee on 06/20/2018; 

 

Board or Committee Term Exp. Date Name  

Zoning Board of Appeals - 
Full Member 

10/01/2019 
 

Dana Staples  (from associate member to 
full member) 

 
 

 

  



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   July 2, 2018    Order: 57-07022018 
 
Author:  Jody Durisko, Executive Assistant 
 

Subject:  Renaming of Little Androscoggin Park 
 
Information: Mayor Levesque is asking Council that consider renaming the Little Androscoggin Park to Anniversary Park 
to commemorate the Sesquicentennial Anniversary of the City of Auburn. 
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: None   
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: To rename Little Androscoggin Park Anniversary Park. 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: Not Applicable 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
I concur with the recommendation. Signature: _______________________________________ 

 
Attachments:  
Policy For Naming of Facilities and Infrastructure 
City of Auburn Nomination For Proposed Name  
Little Andy Information Sheet 
Riverway Concepts 
Preliminary Plan New Auburn Existing 
Preliminary Plan New Auburn Construction Activity 2018 
Preliminary Plan New Auburn Construction Activity 2019 
 
 
 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 57-07022018 
 

ORDERED, that the Auburn City Council hereby approves the renaming of Little Androscoggin 
Park to Anniversary Park to commemorate the Sesquicentennial Anniversary of the City of 
Auburn.  
  
 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   July 2, 2018 
 
Author:  Holli Olivier, Director of General Assistance 
 

Subject:  Executive Session 
 
Information:  

 

Discussion on a poverty abatement case # 2018-002 pursuant to (36 M.R.S.A § 841). A hearing and written 

notice needs to be provided within 30 days of the application.  

 

Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law 

to be considered in executive session. Executive sessions are not open to the public. The matters that are 

discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of public 

discussion. In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public. The motion must 

be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into executive session. An executive 

session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that 

the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive 

session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6). Those 

applicable to municipal government are:  

 

A.  Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, 

compensation, evaluation, disciplining, resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public 

officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation or hearing of charges or 

complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

 

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause 

damage to the individual's reputation or the individual's right to privacy would be violated;  

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that 

person so desires;  

(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of 

charges or complaints against that person be conducted in open session. A request, if made to the 

agency, must be honored; and  

(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under 

discussion must be permitted to be present.  

 

This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  

 



 

 

 

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a 

student at a private school, the cost of whose education is paid from public funds, as long as:  

 

(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians 

are permitted to be present at an executive session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  

 

C.  Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property 

permanently attached to real property or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or 

economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive 

or bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 

D.  Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. 

The parties must be named before the body or agency may go into executive session. Negotiations 

between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open to the public if 

both parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 

E.  Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the 

body or agency, pending or contemplated litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the 

public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of professional 

responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would 

clearly place the State, municipality or other public agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 

F.   Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency 

when access by the general public to those records is prohibited by statute;  

 

G.   Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, 

permitting or employment purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides 

examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and review of 

examinations with the person examined; and  

 

H.  Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality 

pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement 

matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending enforcement matter. 

 
  
 

City Manager Comments:  

 

Signature:                

 

 
 


	0  Agenda 07-02-2018
	1  Executive Session Info Sheet 2018
	2  Executive Session Info Sheet 2018
	3  Info Sheet Anniversary Park
	3a  Anniversary Park NOMINATION FORM FOR NAMING CITY OWNED PROPERTY
	3b  Park Renaming
	doc05460520180627125518
	doc05460620180627125533

	4  Info Sheet PR Amendment
	4a  Parks and Rec  
	5  Minutes 6-18-2018
	6  Communications Memo - Medical Marijuana Storefront Permit Review post Moratorium
	7  Summer Learning Day Mayoral Proclamation 06.28.2018
	8  Info Sheet - Evergreen ZC - 7.2.18
	8a  Evergreen Subaru PB Report to CC  5-21-2018
	8b  Evergreen Subaru Staff Report to PB  5.8.18 - FINAL
	8c  Ordianance 04-06182018 Niskayuna Zone chg
	9  Info Sheet - board and committee appointments
	9a  VACANCIE1
	9b  Applicants
	5  Brian Carrier - Planning Board Appl
	6  Kathy Shaw - Planning Board Appl
	7  Dana Staples-ZBA application

	9b Applicants2
	9c  Order 55-07022018 Planning Board Appt
	10  Order 56-07022018 ZBA Appt
	10a  Info Sheet Anniversary Park
	10b  Order 57-07022018 renaming of park
	11  Info Sheet - Abatement

	Office Use Only: 
	Nomination Period Starts: 
	Nomination Period Closes: 
	Name of PersonGroupCommittee submitting name: Sesquicentennial Committee
	Address: 60 Court Street
	Phone No: 333-6601
	Proposed Name: Auburn Anniversary Park
	Old Name if any: Little Androscoggin Park
	Street Location: Off Pulsifer Street
	BuildingProperty: 
	City ID: 
	1 Reflect City services provided inat location 1: x
	1 Reflect City services provided inat location 2: 
	1 Reflect City services provided inat location 3: 
	4 Honor a significant individual see below: 
	Full name of individual: 
	deceased: 
	b substantially improved or contributed to the quality of life in Auburn 1: 
	b substantially improved or contributed to the quality of life in Auburn 2: 
	c gave significant civic contributions to Auburn or the region 1: 
	c gave significant civic contributions to Auburn or the region 2: 
	Reason for Nomination 1: To memorialize the work and efforts of the Sesquicentennial Committee in honor of the City's 150th Anniversary.  
	Reason for Nomination 2: To give the citizens of today and generations to come a place to commemorate the 150th Anniversary of the City and many more Anniversaries to come.
	Reason for Nomination 3: To honor the City's rich history and heritage the park will feature personalized bricks that can be visited by many for years to come.
	Reason for Nomination 4: 
	Reason for Nomination 5: 
	Reason for Nomination 6: 
	Reason for Nomination 7: 
	Reason for Nomination 8: 


